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Title Ivy House Farm, Plant Lane, Elton 

Type Farm & Land 

Date Produced 15 Sep 2023 

Internal Reference E24P 

1840 Owner Lord Crewe 

1840 Occupier Ellen Turner (Widow) 

Tithe Map Apportionments 100, 109-113, 115, 129, 160 

1840 Area 7.0 Acres 
 

 

 
Ivy House Farm : 1983 

 

 
Ivy House Farm : 2021 

  
 



 

As with virtually the whole of the township of Elton, Ivy House Farm was part of Lord 

Crewe’s Estate so ultimately any land in the area would be returned to Lord Crewe. Many of 

the tenants built their own properties on the land knowing that was the case with the 

intention of extending the leases for further lives which Lord Crewe seemed quite happy to 

oblige by. 

On the 1840 tithe map, Ivy House was under lease to Ellen Turner who was recorded as a 

widow. Her husband Thomas a builder who had built the house in about 1800 had died in 

1829 and before the 1841 census was taken, Ellen had also died.  

Thomas first took out the lease on the property in 1801 on the lives of himself, his wife and 

a young Samuel Shaw  and the lease was renewed in 1828 taking on further land. This lease 

has Joseph Turner the son as a third name replacing Samuel and also confirms that a 

second property had recently been erected on the site. 

 

Source : Chester Chronicle 17th July 1829 

The Turner family had been in Elton for many years and can be traced back at least to 1780 

through the land tax returns and there was a Randle Turner who died at Elton in 1719, 

probably the great grandfather of Thomas. 

 

 

Source : Land Tax return 1831 

 



 

                     Source : 1840 Tithe Map Ivy House Farm 

In the 1841 census, Thomas and Ellen’s son Joseph was recorded at the property along with 

his wife and six children. It is interesting to note that on the face of it there were three 

buildings on the land, were these all built by the Turner’s themselves?  

Certainly the building next to Elton Moss Bridge was a residential property in times gone by 

and this was split off from Ivy House some time later. 

 

 

Source : National Archives 1841 census 

In 1846 the property is mentioned as being on the boundary line to the new church of St 

Peter in Elworth with this property being just inside the St Peter parish. 



 

Source : National Archives 1851 census 

A few years later, Joseph’s eldest some Jabez married and once his family was started, he 

moved to Crewe 

 

Ten years later, Joseph was also noted as a farmer and a grocer, so he will have been 

making full use of the 7 acres of land that he leased, then after a further ten years, he 

seems to have given up the bricklaying probably as a result of his age.   

 

Source : National Archives 1861 census 

 

Source : National Archives 1871 census 



 

At the start of the new decade a 
tragedy struck the Turner family 
when Jabez’s grandson died in an 
accident whilst outside playing on 
the moss. His eldest daughter 
Mary had stayedhad stayed in 
Crewe and married a William 
Dean and it was their first born 
Frank wh died on this fateful day. 
 
Mary and William actually had a 
torrid time in the 1880’s with 
their first 5 children all dying 
under the age of 6. Perhaps this 
was the reason they continually 
moved around crewe to get away 
from the memories.  
 
They eventually had two further 
sons who lived to a good age. 
 

 

 
Source : Nantwich Chronice 7th April 1880 

 

 

 

 

Source : National Archives 1881 census 

Joseph died in 1887 at the grand age of 84, he was by then living with and possibly cared by 

his son Jabez in a property recorded as Red Lane but probably still Ivy House. 

 

 



Source : Alderley Advertiser 18th August 1887 

 

 

 

Source : National Archives 1891 census 

 

 

Source : National Archives 1901 census 

Source : National Archives 1911 census  

 

Jabez Turner died in 1906 having lived his whole life at Ivy House (as with his father) 

besides some time he spent in Crewe. His wife Emily stayed there for the rest of her life 

until she died in 1920.  



 

Source : Nantwich Guardian 6th October 1914 

In the meantime, as the war approached, Lord Crewe decided to sell his estate. The 

Turner’s had in their time at least three Lord Crewe Landlords but due to diminishing 

returns from agricultural land and financial difficulties, Lord Crewe started off the process 

of selling the estate. This process was completed in 1936 with the sale of the hall. 

The Estate in Warmingham, Tetton and Elton was first put up for sale in 1915 where it failed 

to sell with the land around Ivy House Farm being put up in four separate lots.  

Three years later in the Summer of 1915, the Elton portion of the Estate was sold by Robert 

Offley Ashburton Crewe-Milnes, the nephew of Hungerford Crewe who by then had been 

elevated to the title Marquiss of Crewe  for sale, only for it to be withdrawn at the last 

moment and privately sold to Francis J Poole. 

 

Source : Chester Chronicle 3rd August 1918 



 

Source : OS Map 3rd Edition 1910 and Crewe Estate Sale Catalogue 1918 (Turner Land in Green, others in Yellow) 

 

 
 

 

In the 1918 sale, Ivy House was 
sold as a single smallholding of 
about 10 acres. The two fields 
from the 1840 tithe map, one 
behind Watch Lane Cottage & 
one off Red Lane were sold 
seperately. 
 
The private sale was made to 
Francis J Poole a local 
businessman solicitor who had 
married one of the daughters of 
Edwin Foden. His name lives on 
today as Poole Alcock  
 
Francis Poole then set about 
selling on the estate generally 
back to the existing tenants, no 
doubt with a markup for 
himself. In total 20 properties 
over 93 acres of land were sold. 



 

 

 
Source Alderley Advertiser 11th June 1920 

 

 
Source : Crewe Chronicle 17th July 1920 
 

Emily Turner was the purchaser of Ivy House 
and she continued to live there until she 
died in 1920, followed by her son Wesley 
who eventually moved out in 1931. Wesley 
continued the family tradition working as a 
bricklayer. 

 

 

Source : National Archives 1921 census 

So after in excess of 250 years, the Turner family moved out of Ivy House to be replaced by 

the Underhills who in turn stayed there for 50 years until the 1980s when the property was 

put up for sale with the need for “modernisation” 

 

Source : 1939 National Register 



 

             Source : Crewe Chronicle 30th April 1981                                                Source : Nantwich Chronicle 3rd Nov 1983 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Chronological list of Owners and Occupiers 

 

List of 1840 Field Names 

 


